

Machine Automation Controller NJ-series

EtherCAT(R) Connection Guide

OMRON Corporation

Multi-function Compact Inverter (3G3MX2 Series Type V1)

Network Connection Guide



P640-E1-01

About Intellectual Property Rights and Trademarks

Microsoft product screen shots reprinted with permission from Microsoft Corporation. Windows is a registered trademark of Microsoft Corporation in the USA and other countries. EtherCAT(R) is registered trademark and patented technology, licensed by Beckhoff Automation GmbH, Germany.

Sysmac is a trademark or registered trademark of OMRON Corporation in Japan and other countries for OMRON factory automation products.

Company names and product names in this document are the trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective companies.

Table of Contents

1.	Related Manuals1					
2.	Terms and Definitions2					
3.	Pre	ecautions	. 3			
4.	Ov	verview	. 4			
5.	Ар	plicable Devices and Device Configuration	. 5			
5.	.1.	Applicable Devices	. 5			
5.	.2.	Device Configuration	. 6			
6.	Etł	herCAT Settings	. 7			
6	.1.	Parameters	. 7			
6.	.2.	PDO Mappings	. 8			
6.	.3.	Device Variables	. 9			
7.	Etł	herCAT Connection Procedure	11			
7.	.1.	Work Flow	11			
7.	.2.	Setting up Inverter	12			
7.	.3.	Setting up Controller	18			
7.	.4.	Checking the EtherCAT Communications	28			
8.	Ini	tialization Method	32			
8.	.1.	Initializing the Controller	32			
8	.2.	Initializing Inverter	32			
9.	Re	vision History	33			

1. Related Manuals

To ensure system safety, make sure to always read and heed the information provided in all Safety Precautions and Precautions for Safe Use of manuals for each device which is used in the system.

Cat. No.	Model	Manual name
W500	NJ501-[][][][]	NJ-series CPU Unit Hardware User's Manual
	NJ301-[][][][]	
	NJ101-[][][][]	
W501	NJ501-[][][][]	NJ/NX-series CPU Unit Software User's Manual
	NJ301-[][][][]	
	NJ101-[][][][]	
W505	NJ501-[][][][]	NJ/NX-series CPU Unit Built-in EtherCAT(R) Port
	NJ301-[][][][]	User's Manual
	NJ101-[][][][]	
W504	SYSMAC-SE2[][][]	Sysmac Studio Version 1 Operation Manual
1585	3G3MX2-A[][][][]-V1	Inverter Multi-function Compact Inverter
		MX2 Series Type V1 User's Manual
1574	3G3AX-MX2-ECT	Inverter MX2/RX Series
		EtherCAT(R) Communication Unit User's Manual

The table below lists the manuals related to this document.

2. Terms and Definitions

Term	Explanation and Definition
PDO communications (Communications using Process Data Objects)	 This method is used for cyclic data exchange between a master unit and slave units. PDO data (i.e., I/O data that is mapped to PDOs) that is allocated in advance is refreshed periodically each EtherCAT process data communications cycle (i.e., the period of primary periodic task). The NJ-series Machine Automation Controller uses the PDO communications for commands to refresh I/O data in a fixed control period, including I/O data for slaves, and the position control data for servomotors. It is accessed from NJ-series Machine Automation Controller in the following ways. With device variables for a slave I/O With axis variables for a servo drive and an encoder input
SDO Communications	slave to which assigned as an axis This method is used to read and write the specified slave unit
(Communications using Service Data Objects)	data from a master unit when required. The NJ-series Machine Automation Controller uses SDO
	communications for commands to read and write data, such as for parameter transfers, at specified times.
	The NJ-series Machine Automation Controller can read/write the specified slave data (parameters and error information, etc.)
	with the EC_CoESDORead (Read CoE SDO) instruction or the EC_CoESDOWrite (Write CoE SDO) instruction.
Slave unit	There are various types of slaves such as servo drives that handle position data and I/O terminals that handle bit signals. A slave unit receives output data sent from a master, and sends input data to a master.
Node address	A node address is an address to identify a unit connected to EtherCAT.

3. Precautions

- (1) Understand the specifications of devices which are used in the system. Allow some margin for ratings and performance. Provide safety measures, such as installing safety circuit, in order to ensure safety and minimize risks of abnormal occurrence.
- (2) To ensure system safety, make sure to always read and heed the information provided in all Safety Precautions and Precautions for Safe Use of manuals for each device which is used in the system.
- (3) The user is encouraged to confirm the standards and regulations that the system must conform to.
- (4) It is prohibited to copy, to reproduce, and to distribute a part or the whole of this document without the permission of OMRON Corporation.
- (5) The information contained in this document is current as of September 2015. It is subject to change without notice for improvement.

The following notations are used in this document.



Precautions for Correct Use

Precautions on what to do and what not to do to ensure proper operation and performance.

Additional Information

Additional information to read as required.

This information is provided to increase understanding or make operation easier.

Symbol



The filled circle symbol indicates operations that you must do. The specific operation is shown in the circle and explained in text. This example shows a general precaution for something that must do.

4. Overview

This document describes the procedures for connecting 3G3MX2 Series Type V1 Multi-function Compact Inverter (hereinafter referred to as Inverter) of OMRON Corporation (hereinafter referred to as OMRON) to NJ-series Machine Automation Controller (hereinafter referred to as Controller) via EtherCAT and the procedures for checking their connections. Refer to Section 6. EtherCAT Settings and Section 7. EtherCAT Connection Procedure to understand the setting method and key points to operate PDO Communications via EtherCAT. In this document, the operations for PDO communications via EtherCAT are checked by the output frequency setting and the status check of Inverter.

5. Applicable Devices and Device Configuration

5.1. Applicable Devices

The applicable devices are as follows:

Manufacturer	Name	Model
OMRON	NJ-series CPU Unit	NJ501-[][][][]
		NJ301-[][][][]
		NJ101-[][][][]
OMRON	Inverter	3G3MX2-A[][][][]-V1
OMRON	EtherCAT Communication Unit	3G3AX-MX2-ECT

Precautions for Correct Use

As applicable devices above, the devices with the models and versions listed in *5.2. Device Configuration* are actually used in this document to describe the procedure for connecting devices and checking the connection.

You cannot use devices with versions lower than the versions listed in 5.2.

To use the above devices with models not listed in *5.2.* or versions higher than those listed in *5.2.*, check the differences in the specifications by referring to the manuals before operating the devices.



Additional Information

This document describes the procedures to establish the network connections. It does not provide information on operation, installation, wiring method, device functionality, or device operation which is not related to the connection procedures. Refer to the manuals or contact the device manufacturer.

5.2. Device Configuration

The hardware components to reproduce the connection procedures of this document are as

follows:



Manufacturer	Name	INIOdel	Version
OMRON	CPU Unit (Built-in EtherCAT port)	NJ501-1500	Ver.1.10
OMRON	Power Supply Unit	NJ-PA3001	
OMRON	Sysmac Studio	SYSMAC-SE2[][][]	Ver.1.13
-	Personal computer (OS: Windows 7)	-	
-	USB cable (USB 2.0 type B connector)	-	
OMRON	Ethernet cable	XS5W-T421-[]M[]-K	
	(with industrial Ethernet connector)		
OMRON	Inverter	3G3MX2-A2002-V1	V2.0
OMRON	EtherCAT Communication Unit	3G3AX-MX2-ECT	Rev.1.1

Precautions for Correct Use

The connection line of EtherCAT communications cannot be shared with other Ethernet networks. Do not use devices for Ethernet such as a switching hub.

Use the Ethernet cable (double shielding with aluminum tape and braiding) of Category 5 or higher, and use the shielded connector of Category 5 or higher.

Connect the cable shield to the connector hood at both ends of the cable.

Precautions for Correct Use

Update Sysmac Studio to the version specified in this clause or higher version. If you use a version higher than the one specified in this clause, the procedures and related screenshots described in *Section 7*. and subsequent sections may not be applicable. In that case, use the equivalent procedures by referring to the *Sysmac Studio Version 1 Operation Manual* (Cat. No. W504).

Additional Information

For specifications of the Ethernet cables and network wirings, refer to Section 4. EtherCAT *Network Wiring* of the *NJ/NX-series CPU Unit Built-in EtherCAT(R) Port User's Manual* (Cat. No. W505).



Additional Information

The system configuration in this document uses USB for the connection to Controller. For information on how to install a USB driver, refer to *A-1 Driver Installation for Direct USB Cable Connection* of the *Sysmac Studio Version 1 Operation Manual* (Cat. No. W504).

6. EtherCAT Settings

This section describes the specifications of parameters, PDO mappings, and device variables that are set in this document.

Hereinafter, Inverter is referred to as "Slave Unit" in some descriptions.

6.1. Parameters

The parameters required for connecting Controller and Inverter via EtherCAT are given below. Use the following settings when you perform *7.2.1. Hardware Settings* and *7.2.2. Parameter Settings*.

Name	Item	Set value	Description
Inverter	Node address 1		-
	A001 04		Option (Using EtherCAT
	(1st Frequency Reference Selection)		Communication Unit mounted
	A002 04		on Inverter.)
	(1st RUN Command Selection)		
	C102 (Reset Selection)	03	Trip reset only

6.2. PDO Mappings

The PDO entries (objects) of Inverter required to connect Controller and Inverter via EtherCAT are shown below for the connection checks described in this document. Use the following settings when you perform *7.3.2. PDO Map Settings*.

Output (Controller to Inverter)

Index	PDO entry name
0x5000:00	Command
0x5010:00	Frequency reference

PDO Map					PDO entries in	ncluded ir	1 258th ree	ceive PDO Mapping
Process Data Size : Input 40 [bit] / 320 [bit]					Index	Size	Data type	PDO entry name
		Output 32 [b	it] / 320	[bit]	0x5000:00	16 [bit]	WORD	Command
Selection	Input/Output		Flag		0x5010:00	16 [bit]	INT	Frequency reference
		No option						
	Output	257th receive PDO Mapping						
\odot	Output	258th receive PDO Mapping		$\overline{\mathbf{v}}$	<		_	>

■Input (Inverter to Controller)

Index	PDO entry name
0x5100:00	Status
0x5110:00	Output frequency monitor
0x2002:01	Sysmac Error Status

PDO Map		PDO entries included in 258th transmit PDO Mapping					
	Pro	cess Data Size : Input 40 [b	it] / 320 [bit]	Index	Size	Data type	PDO entry name
		Output 32 [bit] / 320 [bit]	0x5100:00	16 [bit]	WORD	Status
Selection	Input/Output	i Name	Flag 🛆	0x5110:00	16 [bit]	INT	Output frequency monitor
		No option					
	Input	257th transmit PDO Mappir	ig				
\odot	Input	258th transmit PDO Mappir	ng 🗸	<			
PDO Map				PDO entrie	es include	d in 512th	transmit PDO Mapping
	Pr	ocess Data Size : Input 40	[bit] / 320 [bit]	Index	l Size	e IData t	ypel PDO entry name
		Output 32	2 [bit] / 320 [bit] 0x2002:	01 8 [bit] BYTE	Sysmac Error Status
Selection Input/Output Name Flag							
		No option					
\odot	Input	512th transmit PDO Map	ping			_	>

Additional Information

For details on PDO mappings of Inverter, refer to Section 4. Inverter Control of the Inverter MX2/RX Series EtherCAT(R) Communication Unit User's Manual (Cat. No. 1574).

6.3. Device Variables

The PDO communications data for Inverter are allocated to the Controller's device variables. The device variables and the data types are shown below.

The contents described in this clause are set in 7.3.3. Setting the Device Variables.

Device variable name	Data type	Index	Description				
E001 Command	WORD	0x5000:00	Command: Operation command to				
E001_Command	WORD		Inverter				
E001_Frequency_reference	INT	0x5010:00	Frequency reference: Gives an output				
			frequency (Unit: 0.01 Hz)				

Output area (Controller to Inverter)

Precautions for Correct Use

Do not give a negative value to E001_Frequency_reference (frequency reference).

*Details of bit data allocations for the command

Bit	Name	Meaning
0	Forward/stop	0: Stop
0	Forward/stop	1: Forward command
1	Reverse/stop	0: Stop
I		1: Reverse command
7	Fault reset	★: Resets an error or trip for EtherCAT Communication Unit or Inverter.
Other	(Reserved)	The reserved area. Set 0.

Device variable name	Data type	Index	Description		
E001_Status	WORD	0x5100:00	Status: The present state of EtherCAT Communications Unit.		
E001_Output_frequency_monitor	INT	0x5110:00	Output frequency monitor: Displays an output frequency (Unit: 0.01 Hz).		
E001_Sysmac_Error_Status	BYTE	0x2002:01	Sysmac Error Status		
E001_Observation	BOOL		Error description of observation		
E001_Minor_Fault	BOOL		Error description of minor fault level		

■Input area (Inverter to Controller)

Details of bit data allocations for the status

Bit	Name	Meaning
0	Forward operation in	0: Stopped/during reverse operation
0	progress	1: During forward operation
1	Reverse operation in	0: Stopped/during forward operation
1	progress	1: During reverse operation
		0: No error or trip occurred for EtherCAT Communication Unit
3	Foult	or Inverter.
3	Fault	1: Error or trip occurred for EtherCAT Communication Unit or
		Inverter.
		0: No warning occurred for EtherCAT Communication Unit or
7		Inverter.
1	Warning	1: Warning occurred for EtherCAT Communication Unit or
		Inverter.
9	Remote	0: Local (Operations from EtherCAT are disabled)
9	Kemole	1: Remote (Operations from EtherCAT are enabled)
12	Fraguency motobing	0: During acceleration/deceleration or stopped
12	Frequency matching	1: Frequency matched
	Connection error between	0: Normal
15	the optional unit and	1: Error (Cannot update data for the inverter. To restore, turn
	Inverter	the power OFF and then ON again.)
Other	(Reserved)	The reserved area. Set 0.

Additional Information

The device variables are named automatically from a combination of the device names and the port names.

The default device names are "E" followed by a serial number that starts from 001.



Additional Information

For details on the allocations of input and output areas, refer to Section 4. Inverter Control of the Inverter MX2/RX Series EtherCAT(R) Communication Unit User's Manual (Cat. No. 1574).

7. EtherCAT Connection Procedure

This section describes the procedures for connecting Controller to Inverter via EtherCAT. In this document, the explanations of procedures for setting up Controller and Inverter are based on the factory default settings.

For the initialization, refer to Section 8. Initialization Method.

7.1. Work Flow

Take the following steps to perform PDO Communications of EtherCAT.



7.2. Setting up Inverter

Set up Inverter.

7.2.1. Hardware Settings

Set the hardware switches on Inverter and connect the cables.

	-1		L	4
				ï
	1		ø	L
	1	ø	r.,	L
. 8		٢.		

Precautions for Correct Use

Make sure that the power supply is OFF when you perform the setting up.



7. EtherCAT Connection Procedure

4 Mount EtherCAT Communication Unit onto Inverter as shown in the right figure.

> *For mounting EtherCAT Communication Unit, refer to 2-5 Mounting and Wiring for the EtherCAT Communication Unit of the Inverter MX2/RX Series EtherCAT(R) Communication Unit User's Manual (Cat. No. 1574).

- *For details on the FG cable to ground, refer to 2-3 Wiring of the Inverter Multi-function Compact Inverter MX2 Series Type V1 User's Manual (Cat. No. 1585).
- Option Unit Cover that you removed was attached. Check that the connector is firmly connected.

1. Mount EtherCAT Communication Unit onto the location where Inverter

- Note: When EtherCAT Communication Unit is mounted, the main circuit and control circuit terminals of Inverter are hidden. For this reason, be sure to wire the main circuit and control circuit terminals before mounting EtherCAT Communication Unit.
- 2. Tighten the bottom right screw of EtherCAT Communication Unit with the specified torque (46 N•cm, 4.7 kgf•cm).



 Ground the FG cable of EtherCAT Communication Unit. Cut the ground wire of the unit's FG cable to an appropriate length and ground it to the closest possible ground location.



wiring.

7. EtherCAT Connection Procedure



7.2.2. Parameter Settings

Set the parameters for Inverter.

In this document, the parameters are set by Digital Operator (display operation panel) on Inverter.



Additional Information

If you set the parameters for Inverter by Sysmac Studio, refer to 5-4 Setting EtherCAT Drives of the Sysmac Studio Version 1 Operation Manual (Cat. No. W504) and the Inverter MX2/RX Series EtherCAT(R) Communication Unit User's Manual (Cat. No. I574).





7. EtherCAT Connection Procedure



7.3. Setting up Controller

Set up Controller.

7.3.1. Starting Sysmac Studio and Setting the EtherCAT Network Configuration

Start Sysmac Studio and set the EtherCAT network configuration. Install Sysmac Studio and a USB driver on Personal computer beforehand.





Additional Information

For details on online connections to Controller, refer to Section 6. Online Connections to a Controller of the Sysmac Studio Version 1 Operation Manual (Cat. No. W504).







7.3.2. PDO Map Settings

Set PDO mappings to use for Inverter.

1	Select Offline from the	Controller	Simulation	Tools	Help	
	Controller Menu.	Commun	ications Setup			
		Change [)evice			
		Online		Ctrl	±\W	
		Offline		1.242.51	+Shift+W	
		Online		Cur	+511111+14	
			-			
	The yellow bar under the toolbar		roject <u>C</u> ontroller <u>S</u> imulation]			
	disappears.					
2	Select the slave unit for the	EtherCAT ×	unde configuration			
	node address 1 added in the	Node Address Netv	Master Master	1	tem name	Value
	previous sub-clause on the	1	E001	Device na Model na	me	E001 3G3AX-MX2-ECT
	EtherCAT Tab Page.			Product n Revision		3G3AX-MX2-ECT Ethe 1.1
				Node Add		1
				Serial Nur	isable Settings mber	Enabled 0x00000000 0x5000:00 258th recei
						0x5010:00 258th recei 0x5100:00 258th trans
				PDO Map	Settings	0x5110:00 258th trans 0x2002:01 512th trans
				Enable Di	stributed Clock	Edit PDO Map Settin
3	Click Edit PDO Map Settings in	Them	name		Value	
	the PDO Map Settings Field.	Device name		E001	Value	
		Model name			K-MX2-ECT	
		Product nam	e		K-MX2-ECT	Ether…
		Revision Node Addre		1.1		
		Enable/Disat		Enable	ed	T
		Serial Numb		0x000		
					0:00 258th r	
					0:00 258th r 0:00 258th t	
		PDO Map Se	ttings		0:00 258th t	
					2:01 512th t PDO Map S	
		Enable Distri	buted Clock		PDO Map 3	setungs
		7				
4	The Edit PDO Map Settings	Edit PDO Map Settings			PDO entries included i	n 258th receive PDO Mapping
	Dialog Box is displayed.		ess Data Size : Input 40 [bit] Output 32 [bi	/ 320 [bit]		WORD Command
			Name No option 257th receive PDO Manning	Flaq	0x5010:00 16 [bit]	
	Select Output 258th receive		258th receive PDO Mapping		<	
	PDO Mapping.			Edit Pl	Move Up DO Entry Add Pt	Move Down Align DO Entry Delete PDO Ent
	"PDO entries included in 258th					OK Cancel App
	receive PDO Mapping" is					
	displayed on the right side of the					
	uispiayeu un me nymu side un me					

5	Check that the following objects are set. • 0x5000:00 • 0x5010:00	PDO entries included in 258th receive PDO MappingIndexSize0x5000:0016 [bit]0x5010:0016 [bit]INTFrequency reference
6	Select Input 258th transmit PDO Mapping. "PDO entries included in 258th transmit PDO Mapping" is displayed on the right side of the dialog box.	Edit PDO Map Settings PDO Map Process Data Size : Input 40 [bit] / 320 [bit] Output 32 [bit] / 320 [bit] Selection [Input/Output] Name Flag Ox5100:00 16 [bit] INT Output 32; 57th transmit PDO Mapping Ox5100:00 16 [bit] INT Output 32; 57th transmit PDO Mapping Ox5100:00 16 [bit] INT Output 73; 7th transmit PDO Mapping Edit PDO Entry Add PDO Entry OK Cancel
7	Check that the following objects are set. • 0x5100:00 • 0x5110:00	PDO entries included in 258th transmit PDO MappingIndexSizeData typePDO entry name0x5100:0016 [bit]WORDStatus0x5110:0016 [bit]INTOutput frequency monitor
8	Select Input 512th transmit PDO Mapping. "PDO entries included in 512th transmit PDO Mapping" is displayed on the right side of the dialog box.	Edit PDO Map Settings Image: Settings PDO Map PD0 entries included in 512th transmit PDO Mappina Process Data Size : Input 40 [bit] / 320 [bit] Index Size : Input 40 [bit] / 320 [bit] Output 32 [bit] / 320 [bit] Index Size : Input 40 [bit] / 320 [bit] SelectionInput/Output! Name Flag Imput Siz2th transmit PDO Mapping Image: Size : Input 40 [bit] Move Up Move Down Align Edit PDO Entry Add PDO Entry Delete PDO Entry OK Cancel Apply
9	Check that the following objects are set. • 0x2002:01	PDO entries included in 512th transmit PDO Mapping Index Size Data type PDO entry name 0x2002:01 8 [bit] BYTE Sysmac Error Status
10	Click OK .	POO Map PDO entries included in 512th transmit PDO Mapping POO Map PDO entries included in 512th transmit PDO Mapping Poto transmit PDO solution Size i Data type POO intries included in 512th transmit PDO entry name Index Size Data type PDO entry name Selection!Input/Output! Name I Flag Imput 512th transmit PDO Mapping Nove Up Move Up Move Down Align Edit PDO Entry Add POO Entry Delete PDO Entry OK Cancel Apply
11	Check that the same PDO entries as those listed in 6.2. PDO Mappings are displayed in the PDO Map Settings Field.	Item nameValueDevice nameE001Model name3G3AX-MX2-ECTProduct name3G3AX-MX2-ECT Ether…Revision1.1Node Address1Enable/Disable SettingsEnabledSerial Number0x00000000PDO Map Settings0x500:00 258th receiv…PDO Map Settings0x5110:00 258th trans…Enable Distributed Clock

7.3.3. Setting the Device Variables

Set the device variables to use for Slave Unit.



Additional Information

The device variables are named automatically from a combination of the device names and the port names. The default device names are "E" followed by a serial number that starts from 001.



Additional Information

In this document, device variables are automatically named for a unit (a slave). Device variables can also be manually named for ports.

7.3.4. Transferring the Project Data

Transfer the project data from Sysmac Studio to Controller.

ΜARNING

When you transfer a user program, configuration data, setup data, device variables, or values in memory used for CJ-series Units from Sysmac Studio, the devices or machines may perform unexpected operation regardless of the operating mode of CPU Unit.

Always confirm safety at the destination node before you transfer the project data.



A Caution

After transferring the project data, CPU Unit restarts and communications with slaves are cut off. During the period, the outputs of slaves behave according to the slave settings. The time that communications are cut off depends on the EtherCAT network configuration.

Before you transfer the project data, confirm that the slave settings will not adversely affect the device.

A Caution

A slave will be reset after performing the synchronization in step 7 and subsequent steps, and the device may perform unexpected operations. Always confirm safety before performing the synchronization.

1	Select <i>Check All Programs</i> from the Project Menu.	Project Controller Simulation Tool Check All Programs F7 Check Selected Programs Shift+F7
2	The Build Tab Page is displayed. Check that "0 Errors" and "0 Warnings" are displayed.	Build
3	Select Rebuild Controller from the Project Menu.	Project Controller Simulation Toc Check All Programs F7 F7 F7 Check Selected Programs Shift+F7 F8 Rebuild Controller F8

4	A confirmation dialog box is displayed. Check that there is no problem and click Yes . Check that "0 Errors" and "0 Warnings" are displayed on the Build Tab Page.			
6	Select Online from the Controller Menu.	Controller Simulation Communications Se Change Device		
		Online Offline	Ctrl+W Ctrl+Shift+W	
	When an online connection is	L	l	
	established, a yellow bar is	<u>File Edit View Insert Project Co</u>		
	displayed under the toolbar.			
7	Select Synchronization from	Controller Simulati	on Tools Help	
	the Controller Menu.	Communications Se	etup	
		Change Device		
		Online	Ctrl+W	
		Offline	Ctrl+Shift+W	
		Synchronization	Ctrl+M	
8	The Synchronization Dialog Box is displayed. Check that the data to transfer		nputer: Update Da ^l Controller: Update Da ^l Controller 3/2015 9:03:13 PA	: Data Name Compare
	(NJ501 in the right dialog box) is			
	selected. Then, click Transfer	Legend: Synchronized Different Exis	sts only on one side	
	To Controller.	 Clear the present values of variables with Do not transfer the program source (Val Do not transfer the following. (All items - CJ-series Special Unit parameters and 	h Retain attribute (Valid for Transfer to Controller). lid for Transfer to Controller). All data will be re-trans are not transferred.) EtherCAT slave backup parameters.	ferred when this option is changed.
	*After executing Transfer To Controller, the Sysmac Studio data is transferred to Controller, and the data is compared.	- Slave Terminal Unit operation settings Do not transfer the EtherNet/IP connect	and NX Unit application data. ion settings (built-in port and Unit). ee controller has no data.	Close

7. EtherCAT Connection Procedure



7.4. Checking the EtherCAT Communications

Check that the PDO communications of EtherCAT are performed normally.

7.4.1. Checking the Connection Status

Check the connection status of EtherCAT.



7.4.2. Checking the Sent and Received Data

Check that the correct data are sent and received.

The following procedure describes the steps required for checking that the correct data are sent orreceived by setting the output frequency of Inverter in the device variables for output area of Controller and by checking the output frequency monitor stored in the device variables for input area of Controller and the status of Inverter.

▲ Caution

In this procedure, Inverter is output, which may perform unexpected operations. Take sufficient safety precautions and proceed to this operation check. If you cannot confirm safety, do not proceed to this section after completing until *7.4.1. Checking the Connection Status.* If you proceed to this operation check,

make sure to complete all the steps and place Inverter in the safe state.

▲ Caution

If you wire the I/O in the state where the power supplies to the devices are turned ON, doing so may cause damage to the devices.

Always read and heed the information provided in all safety precautions of manuals for each device to be wired.

A Caution

If you change the values of variables on a Watch Tab Page in the online state, the devices connected to the output unit may operate regardless of the operating mode of CPU Unit.

Sufficiently confirm safety before you change the values of variables on a Watch Tab Page when Sysmac Studio is online with CPU Unit.

1	Select Watch Tab Page from the	View Insert Project Controller Simulation Tool:	
	View Menu.	Multiview Explorer Alt+1	
		Toolbox Alt+2	
		Output Tab Page Alt+3	
		Watch Tab Page Alt+4	
2	Select the Watch1 Tab.	Watch1 -	μ×
~		Name IOnline valuel Modify Comment Data type AT Display form	nat II
		📑 Output 🔥 Build 🖾 Watch (Project) 🧰 Watch 1 👼 Watch (Table)1	
3	As shown below, enter the following		
Ŭ	name of the variables for	Name	
	monitoring. Click Input Name in the	E001_Command	
	Name Column to enter a new name.	E001_Frequency_reference	
	E001_Command	E001_Status	
	E001_Frequency_reference	E001_Output_frequency_monitor	
	E001_Status	Input Name	
	E001_Output_frequency_monitor		

4	Check that the display formats are	
	as follows:	
	E001_Command: Hexadecimal	Name Online value Modify Data type Display format
	E001_Frequency_reference:	E001_Command 0000 WORD Hexadecimal
	Decimal	E001_Frequency_reference 0 INT Decimal E001_Status 0200 WORD Hexadecimal
	E001_Status: Hexadecimal	E001_Output_frequency_monitor 0 INT Decimal
	E001_Output_frequency_monitor.	
	Decimal	
5	Check that the online value for the	Name Online value Modify
ວ	<i>E001_Status</i> variable is 0200.	E001_Command 0000
	—	E001_Frequency_reference 0
	*This means that the status bit 9 is	E001_Status
	"1" (Remote: Operations from EtherCAT are enabled).	E001_Output_frequency_monitor 0
6	Check that the display on Inverter	
0	shows as follows:	
	RUN LED: Not lit	
	Data display: 0.00	
	(Output frequency: 0.00 Hz)	
	Monitor LED (Hz): Green lit	MX2 INVERTER
	*If the output frequency monitor is	
	not displayed, take step 5 in 7.2.2.	
	Parameter Settings to display.	
7	Enter 200 (2.00 Hz) in the Modify	Name Online value! Modify
-	Column of the	E001_Command 0000
	E001_Frequency_reference	E001_Frequency_reference 0 200
	variable on the Watch1 Tab Page of	E001_Status 0200
	Sysmac Studio.	E001_Output_frequency_monitor 0
	"200" is displayed in the Online	Name Online value Modify
	value Column of the	E001_Command 0000
	E001_Frequency_reference	E001_Frequency_reference 200 200
	variable.	E001_Status 0200
		E001_Output_frequency_monitor 0
8	Enter 1 in the Modify Column of the	Name Online value Modify
	E001_Command variable.	E001_Command 0000 1
	*Sot the command hit 0 to 1	E001_Frequency_reference 200 200
	*Set the command bit 0 to 1 (Forward command).	E001_Status 0200
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	E001_Output_frequency_monitor 0

7. EtherCAT Connection Procedure

9	Check that the online values of variables are as follows.	Name Online value Modify E001_Command 0001 1
	<i>E001 Status</i> : 1201	E001_Frequency_reference 200 200
	E001_Output_frequency_monitor:	E001_Status
	200 (Output frequency: 2.00 Hz)	E001_Output_frequency_monitor
	*This means that the status bit 0 is "1" (During forward operation) and bit 12 is "1" (Frequency matched).	
10	Check that the display of Inverter	
	shows as follows:	
	RUN LED: Green lit	
	Data display: 2.00	
	(Output frequency: 2.00 Hz)	
	Monitor LED (Hz): Green lit	Hz ALM PRG O
11	Enter the following values in the	Name Online value Modify
••	Modify Column on the Watch1 Tab	E001_Command 0001 0
	Page of Sysmac Studio	E001_Frequency_reference 200 0
	E001_Command: 0	E001_Status 1201
	E001_Frequency_reference:	E001_Output_frequency_monitor 200
	<i>0</i> (0.00 Hz)	
	*Set the command bit 0 to "0" (Stop).	
12	Check that the online values of	Name Online value Modify
•	variables are as follows:	E001_Command 0000 0
	<i>E001_Status</i> : 0200	E001_Frequency_reference 0 0
	E001_Output_frequency_monitor.	E001_Status
	0 (Output frequency: 0.00 Hz)	E001_Output_frequency_monitor
	*This means that the status bit 0 is "0" (Stopped/during reverse operation) and bit 12 is "0" (During acceleration/deceleration or stopped).	
13	Check that the display of Inverter is	
	as follows:	
	RUN LED: Not lit	
	Data display: 0.00	
	(Output frequency: 0.00 Hz)	
	Monitor LED (Hz): Green lit	MX2 INVERTER O

8. Initialization Method

This document provides explanations of procedures based on the factory default settings. Some settings may not be applicable as described in this document unless you use the devices with the factory default settings.

8.1. Initializing the Controller

To initialize the settings of Controller, it is necessary to initialize CPU Unit. Change the operating mode of Controller to PROGRAM mode before the initialization. Select *Clear All Memory* from the Controller Menu in Sysmac Studio. The Clear All Memory Dialog Box is displayed. Check the contents and click **OK**.

Clear All Memo	📓 Clear All Memory				
	lizes the target area of destination Controller. in initialize first, and press the OK button.				
CPU Unit Name: Model:	new_Controller_0 NJ501-1500				
Area:	User Program User-defined Valiables Controller Configurations and Setup Security Information Settings of Operation Authority(initialization at the next online)				
Clear event log					
	OK Cancel				

8.2. Initializing Inverter

For information on how to initialize Inverter, refer to 5-1-2 Parameter Initialization of the Inverter Multi-function Compact Inverter MX2 Series Type V1 User's Manual (Cat. No. 1585).

9. Revision History

	Revision code	Date of revision	Revision reason and revision page
_	01	September 18, 2015	First edition

OMRON Corporation Industrial Automation Company Tokyo, JAPAN

Contact: www.ia.omron.com

Regional Headquarters OMRON EUROPE B.V. Wegalaan 67-69, 2132 JD Hoofddorp The Netherlands Tel: (31)2356-81-300/Fax: (31)2356-81-388

OMRON ASIA PACIFIC PTE. LTD. No. 438A Alexandra Road # 05-05/08 (Lobby 2), Alexandra Technopark, Singapore 119967 Tel: (65) 6835-3011/Fax: (65) 6835-2711

OMRON ELECTRONICS LLC 2895 Greenspoint Parkway, Suite 200 Hoffman Estates, IL 60169 U.S.A Tel: (1) 847-843-7900/Fax: (1) 847-843-7787

OMRON (CHINA) CO., LTD. Room 2211, Bank of China Tower, 200 Yin Cheng Zhong Road, PuDong New Area, Shanghai, 200120, China Tel: (86) 21-5037-2222/Fax: (86) 21-5037-2200

Authorized Distributor:

© OMRON Corporation 2015 All Rights Reserved. In the interest of product improvement, specifications are subject to change without notice.

Cat. No. P640-E1-01